
 

Rother District Council 
 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, Braille, audiotape/CD 
or in another language upon request.  For all enquiries – please contact 

julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk Tel: 01424 787811 
 

Rother District Council’s aspiring to deliver 
an Efficient, Flexible and Effective Council; Sustainable Economic Prosperity; 

Stronger, Safer Communities; and a Quality Physical Environment. 

 

Climate Change Steering Group 
Date and Time - Friday 15 November 2019 – 9:30am 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Town Hall, Bexhill-on-Sea 
 

 
Councillors appointed to the Committee: 
Councillor S.J. Coleman, K.M. Field (Chairman), P.J. Gray, Mrs S. Hart, 
L.M. Langlands, P.N. Osborne and S.M. Prochak 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

2.   DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS   

 – To receive any disclosure by Members of personal and disclosable 
pecuniary interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Member regards the personal interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  Members are reminded of the need to repeat 
their declaration immediately prior to the commencement of the item in 
question. 

 

3.   TERMS OF REFERENCE  (Pages 1 - 2) 

4.   ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY CURRENT POSITION   

5.   CONSULTATION PLAN  (Pages 3 - 8) 

6.   FREIBURG: A CASE STUDY OF SUCCESSFUL SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DEVELOPMENT   

7.   EAST SUSSEX ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY   

8.   HOW TO GET A ZERO CARBON FUTURE BY 2030   

9.   THE LOCAL PICTURE   

10.   SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION AND ACTION PLANNING   

11.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

12.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 - To be agreed (Please bring your diaries with you) 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk


 
 

This agenda can be made available in large print, Braille, audiotape/CD 
or in another language upon request.  For all enquiries – please contact 

julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk Tel: 01424 787811 
 

Rother District Council’s aspiring to deliver 
an Efficient, Flexible and Effective Council; Sustainable Economic Prosperity; 

Stronger, Safer Communities; and a Quality Physical Environment. 

 
 

Malcolm Johnston 
Executive Director 

Agenda Despatch Date: 7 November 2019 
 
 

mailto:julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk


Terms of Reference 

Rother District Council 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE STEERING GROUP 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
1. Purpose 

 
On 16 September 2019 Full Council passed a motion declaring a ‘Climate 
Emergency’ and made a carbon neutrality commitment for Rother District with 
a target date of 2030. The Climate Change Steering Group has been 
established by Cabinet to develop, plan and initiate the steps that the Council 
will need to take to meet this highly ambitious target. 

 
2. Objectives 

 

 To produce an action plan or strategy that is designed to ensure that the 
operations of the Council are carbon neutral by 2030.  
 

 To identify relevant existing powers that the Council may exercise, and 
any additional powers to be requested from Central Government, that 
could be used to encourage carbon neutrality throughout the district. 
 

 To identify which policies, strategies and working practices of the Council 
might require amendment, and to outline a timescale for reviewing these. 
 

 Identify and consult with existing external bodies and partnerships; and 
make recommendations on new partnerships that should be established to 
help achieve the 2030 target. 
 

 Identify citizens across Rother who are climate champions for their 
communities and to use them to inform on ideas to implement locally. 
 

 To investigate all possible sources of external funding and match funding 
to support this commitment. 
 

 Investigate what Rother District Council can do to minimise the emission of 
gases other than CO2 which adversely affect climate change. 
 

 To present a pre-consultation draft action plan to Council for consideration 
no later than 24 February 2020, including recommendations for next steps 
and resource requirements.  

 
3. Scope 
 

For the purposes of this initiative, the operations of the Council are considered 
to be any action taken by the Council either institutionally or through its 
Members, staff, volunteers, and contractors in the discharge of its duties.   
 
In developing the action plan the Steering Group will need to consider the 
existing carbon footprint of the Council, existing and emerging carbon 
reducing technologies, opportunities for change in institutional and personal 
behaviour, the impact of Council property assets, and the likely financial cost 
and resource requirements for meeting the 2030 target. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Terms of Reference 

The Steering Group will also consider wider issues related to climate change 
over which the Council might wield influence, but do not directly contribute to 
our own carbon footprint. 

 
4. Membership and Structure 
 

The Climate Change Steering Group will be a cross party group of seven 
Members. The Group will be chaired by the Lead Member for Environment 
and Transport and will consist of one other Executive Member and five non-
Executive Members, reflecting a broad political balance. 
 
Councillors S.J. Coleman, K.M. Field, P.J. Gray, Mrs S. Hart, L.M. Langlands, 
P.N. Osborne and S.M. Prochak. 

 
5. Meetings 
 

The Steering Group will meet regularly, the frequency, time and venue to be 
decided by the Members in liaison with officers. Meetings will not be open to 
the general public, however Members may wish to organise public 
engagement events as part of the action plan development. 

Page 2



Consultation Plan 

Consultation Plan for Environment Strategy 2020 
Consultation Plan period: 24 February 2020 to 18 May 2020 
 
1. Consultation Mission 

Rother District Council (RDC) seeks to identify any gaps for inclusion and 
gather evidence of the potential impact of the proposed strategy and action 
plan, including the strength of feeling, and to identify potential future partners 
for action plan delivery from residents, local businesses, voluntary groups and 
charities, particularly environmental groups regarding the draft strategy and its 
action plan.  This consultation will give the Members of RDC (the Councillors) 
further evidence to take into account when making a final decision on the 
content of the strategy and action plan.  

 
2. Target Groups for Consultation 
 There are 10 main target groups for the consultation: 
 

 Residents 

 Businesses operating in Rother and representative business groups, 
including 
o Transport companies and vehicle suppliers 
o Utility companies – electricity, gas, water 
o Supermarkets 
o Restaurants   

 Public sector organisations: Police, Fire & Rescue, County Council, Parish 
& Town Councils (P&TC), NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and 
health sector, East Sussex Local Authorities 

 Voluntary groups and charities operating in Rother 

 Environmental groups and active transport groups, walking and cycling 
groups 

 Schools, colleges and young people 

 Housing associations and other housing providers 

 Contractors and service level agreement partners with RDC  
o Waste and recycling  
o grounds maintenance 

 All Rother P&TCs 

 Internal teams: Environmental Health, Strategy and Planning, 
Regeneration, Housing Development, Finance 

 
3. Key Dates and Deadlines 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting for draft proposals and 
consultation plan – Monday 27 January 2020 

 Cabinet meeting to consider draft proposals and approve consultation plan 
– Monday 10 February 2020   

 Communication Plan period – 12 weeks (24 February 2020 to 18 May 
2020) 

 Completion of analysis of findings and draft report – June 2020 

 Climate Steering Group meeting – June 2020 

 Cabinet meeting on final proposals – July 2020 

 Full Council – September 2020 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Consultation Plan 

4. Communication and Consultation Methods 
 
4.1 Key messages: 

 Why we want to have an environment strategy and action plan? 

 We want resident engagement and involvement in further developing the 
action plan. 

 We want those potentially affected to have their say and hear the impact 
on them and what they want the Council to take into account when making 
a final decision. 

 We want to hear alternative suggestions and/or other evidence for 
inclusion. 

 We are looking for partners to commit to helping deliver the action plan. 
 
4.2  We plan to communicate the opportunity to consult, at a minimum as follows 

(subject to review during fieldwork period): 

 At least two My Alerts notifications:  in the first week of the consultation 
and again two weeks before closing reminding of closing date.   

 Media releases on launch and one week prior to closing date.  

 Social media accounts on Facebook and Twitter, including:   
o Consultation coming up and start date.   
o Launch of consultation on start date. 
o Progress updates during the consultation period in order to encourage 

participation. 
o Key messages (above). 
o Feedback on key points being made by others or organisations (to 

improve quality of debate). 
o Count down to closing date in order to encourage participation. 
o Closing date notification. 
o Progress post-consultation to provide feedback, such as when it goes 

to committee and Cabinet. 

 Dedicated web page/s for the consultation on the Council’s website (under 
Current Consultations).  The web page will be updated during the fieldwork 
period at least every fortnight with progress reports and updated on key 
milestones after consultation.   

 Emailed invitations to consult with identified stakeholders with one 
reminder before the closing date for those who have not responded.  

 Posters displayed in public locations and distributed to invited 
stakeholders for display. 

 Engagement events for stakeholder groups including: 
o Environmental strategy workshop/s. 
o Exhibition. 

 
5. We plan to use these consultation methods and response gathering for target 

groups: 
 

Residents  
Including Rother Citizens 
Panel  
 

Interactive exhibitions 
Web pages with draft strategy and action plan 
Further information and ways to respond 
Social media engagement 
Online response form/questionnaire 
In addition, we will accept emailed and posted 
responses and submissions of evidence 

Businesses operating in As above and  

Page 4



Consultation Plan 

Rother and representative 
business groups 
 

Emailed invitation to participate with copy of 
draft strategy and action plan  
Invitation to attend appropriate events with 
recorded feedback during events 

Public Sector 
organisations: Police, Fire & 
Rescue, County Council, 
P&TCs, NHS CCG and 
health sector 

As above 
And distributed consultation posters for 
display 

Voluntary groups and 
charities operating in 
Rother, e.g. premises and/or 
transport 

As above 
 

Environmental groups 
 

As above  
 

Schools, Bexhill College 
and young people 

As above 

Housing associations and 
other housing providers 

As above 

Contractors and service 
level agreement partners 
with RDC 

As above 

P&TCs As above 

  
6. To help hard to reach groups of residents to reply to our consultation we will 

provide versions of the briefing document and questionnaire in large print 
because this is the main requested format.  In addition, we will offer versions 
in another language or braille and easy read but these versions will be 
available on request. 

 
7. Questions 
 

These questions will be aimed at businesses, contractors, public sector 
partners, housing associations and schools 

 
a. What are you doing now that reduces your impact on the environment? Do 

you have an environment policy in place?  
 

b. What are you planning to do over the next five to seven years? 
 

c. What should the Council be doing to reduce its impact on the 
environment? Is there anything missing from the draft action plan that we 
should consider including? 
 

d. How interested are you in working in partnership with the Council and 
others on reducing your organisations impact on the environment? 
 

e. What other or further evidence do you have that you would like the Council 
to take into account before creating a final version of this strategy?  

 
These questions will be aimed at residents and exhibition/workshop 
attendees: 

 

Page 5



Consultation Plan 

a. What should the Council be doing to reduce its impact on the 
environment? Is there anything missing from the draft action plan that we 
should consider including? 
 

b. What could I do to reduce the impact my household and I have on the 
environment? 
 

c. What support could the Council provide to help me reduce my impact on 
the environment? 

 
8. We propose to ask the following questions in order to analyse responses by 

key groups: 

 Who they are representing if from a group, organisation or business – to 
monitor for a cross section of local organisations. 

 Residents only: Age group – to monitor for engagement because younger 
age groups are hard to access. 

 Residents only: Ethnicity – to monitor for engagement because non White 
groups are hard to access. 

 Residents only: Disabled, long term limiting illness or condition or not 
disabled. 
o Do you want to analyse by type of disability (physical access problems 

vs other types of disability) because this is only possible if we get high 
numbers e.g. 50 people in each type of disability compared to 50 
people who have a disability. 

 Residents only:  Where they live in Rother?  Bexhill, Battle, Rye, rural 
village or parish – to monitor if we have responses from different parts of 
Rother. 

 Organisations only:  Where they are located or operating from in Rother 
(address).  Where they provide services across Rother outside their own 
premises e.g. transport of goods or services across the district. 

 
9. Risk and Contingency Plans  

a. Low participation prevents good quality information and evidence. 
o Sending out more direct invitations. 
o Reminders to those already invited to participate.   
o Offer a prize draw as a reward for participation for residents.  

b. Challenge on the content, methods and quality of our consultation delays 
completion or undermines the quality of responses. 
o Follow this consultation plan. 
o Inform all invited participants when (if) there is significant new 

information received and make it available on our website in case it 
might change their responses so that they can give due consideration 
of everything the council will use to make a decision. 

c. Highjacking the consultation by interest and campaign groups that, either 
by misinformation, omission or over-emphasis/focus on one or more 
issues, affects the quality of or range of responses and supplied evidence. 
o Good quality consultation documents. 
o Good quality and frequent communications. 
o Prepare to take back the initiative by increasing communication and 

updating key sources of information (documents, website). 
o Ensure we are targeting hard to reach groups.  

d. Bleed of issues from other recent consultations – Council budget, 
Community Governance Review for Bexhill-on-Sea  
o As above 

Page 6



Consultation Plan 

e. Called to account for the impact on the environment of undertaking a 
consultation: printing, power use, travel fuel.  
o Can we use alternatives? 

 
 
Programme Office & Policy Team 
Acquisitions, Transformation and Regeneration Department 
Rother District Council 
8 November 2019 
  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Terms of Reference
	5 Consultation Plan

